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OESCRIBE THE FRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If kpown) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

An 1828 description of Christ Church appearing in the American Beacon
aptly conveyed the visual effect of the building when it stated: "It is
modelled according to the chastest style of Grecian architeccture, and in
all its proportions there is an admirable correspondence; combining at the
same time all the essentials of strength and beauty.' The stuccoed church
is temple-form and is [Eronted by a diastyle portico in antis. The two
unfluted Greek Doric columns of the portico are given added emphasis by the
red, white and blue color scheme chosen by the last occupants of the
building. Directly above the portico is a broad rectangular base for the
cupola., The cupola is divided into two portions: a lower square section
that formerly housed a clock, and an upper octagonal section or belfry
enclosed with louverd shutters. All three elements of this roof struccture
are topped by simple molded corunices.

Measuring approximately 64 feet by 96 feet, the church is three bays deep.
The tall, semi-circular toppcd windows of these bays, as well as those on
either side of the portico are subdivided into arched sections topped by
roundels. Most of the windows retain their stained glass memorials.

The main architectural features of the church's interior are preserved but
changes appear to have been made in the choir and sancturary since the
present arrangement does not conform to the 1828 description. The altar is
currently located in a semi-circular rib-vaulted apse that projects from
the main body of the building. This apse is framed on the interior by a
semil-circular entablature supported at either end by somewhat stumpy pairs
of Greek Corinthian pilasters. The original rear gallery supported on
slender metal columns is intact, as is the flat ribbed ceiling. ALl the
pews have been removed,
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While the church is being preserved, it stands in only fair structural
condition and .in a poor gtate of.repair.
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in the city, which is still active today, leaving the Christ Church
building vacant. It was bought by the Norfolk Redevelopment and
Housing Authority in 1960 which is seeking a buyer for the building
on the condition that it will be restored.

Christ Church survives as one of the very few ante bellum buildings
in this venerable but much changing city, and as an important element
in what is being developed as a compiex of historic buildings and
museums in the heart of the city. The church is also an important
example of sophisticated Greek Revival architecture produced by local
talents. Christ Church is historically important for the deep-seated
roots of its first congregation and for its associations with various
other elements of Norfolk's social structure.

American Beacon, November 12, 1828.

Bagnall, H. B., '"'Christ Church, Norfolk, Bell and Clock,'" with sequel by
Robert.M. Hughes. 2W(2) 114-118.

Burton, W. W., The History of Norfolk, Virginia. Norfolk: Norfolk
Virginian Job Print, 1877.

"Christ Church,” The Port Advocate, November 1966, p. 3.

Christ Church Chromicle, Vol. III, No., 1 (October 1, 1914), p. 13,

Forrest, William S., Norfolk Directory,l1851-1852, Norfolk: 1851.

Meade, Bishop, 0l1d Churches, Ministers and Families of Virginia.
Philadelphia: J. B. Lippincott Company, 1900, Vol. I, p. 277.

Newspaper files, Sargeant Memorial Room, ,Kirn Memorial Library, Norfolk,
Virginia,

Newsweek, Vol. 55 (February 15, 1960), p. 32.

Stewart, William H., History of Norfolk County, Virginia, and Representativ

Citizens. Chicago: DBiographical Publishing Company, 1902.

Tucker, George H., "Elizabeth River Parish Churches,'" Virginian-Pilot,
March 26, 1950 (Section V, p. 1).

Tucker, George H., "History Praises Church,” Virginian-Pilot, December
27, 1965.
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STATEMENTY OF SIGNIFICANCE

-The antecedents of Christ Church can be traced back to L1637, to the first
church of Elizabeth River Parish, Norfolk County, built at Sewell's Point
in that year. 1In 1739 the congregation of this parish erected a larger
building, known for almost a century as the Borough Church, and now known
as St. Paul's Episcopal Church. In 1798 the congregation of Borough
Church split into two factions over two rival ministers, and the larger
group removed itself and built the first Christ Church on Church Street.
This church was destroyed by fire in 1827 and the present church on
Freemason Street was built to replace it the next year. In the meantime,
the Borough Church was taken over by the Baptists and later by the Negro
Baptists and finally fell into disuse. Not until 1832, when the congregati
of Christ Church grew too large, did the Borough Church come back into use
by an Episcopalian congregation which remamed it St. Paul's. A great
rivalry between the two congregations existed for many years as to which
church was the real descendant from the Elizabeth River Parish.

The design of Christ Church has been credited to two people: a local
builder, Levi Swain, and Thomas Williamson, a member of the congregation.
The American Beacon for November 12, 1928 said of the church: "This
beautiful building was erected by 'Mr.’ Levi Swain, -architect, ‘under’ the
direction of the Building Committee, . ." Williamson, the cashier of the
Virginia Bank and an amateur architect is said to have drawn the plans
for the building that were then used as a guide for Levi Swain.

On May 1, 1879, Robert E. Lee attended services at Christ Church. This was
one of Lee's last public appearances for he died less than six months
later.

Christ Church was used by the LEpiscopalians until 1910 when they merged
their congregation with St. Luke's, another downtown church, and built
Christ and St. Luke's Church at Olney Road and Stockley Gardens. The

Greek Orthodox congregation rented the building on Freemason Street

from 1911 to 1918 when they purchased it for $27,000. They occupied the
building until 1955 when they moved into their new church on Granby Street.
Between 1955 and 1960 the church building was used by the House of Prayer
for All People, thus becoming one of the 350 'heavens' or disciple churches
of Sweet Daddy Grace, the famed Negro revivalist who between 1921 and his
death in 1960 amassed an estimated three million followers and an estate
valued at $25 million. On a July 4, 1951, visit to Norfolk, Daddy Grace
baptized 2300 people. It was estimated that his Norfolk following mumbered

10,000 people In 1960 his congregation merged with an older congregation
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